
 
TIOGA COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH 

 

 

 

 

IN ORDER TO ASSURE A QUORUM, 

PLEASE RSVP TO 607-687-8630 

IF YOU WILL NOT BE ABLE TO ATTEND THIS MEETING 

TO:  Members of the Board of Health 
   
FROM:  L. McCafferty, Secretary 
 
DATE:  April 14, 2022 
 
RE: Board of Health Meeting - Thursday, April 21, 2022,  

7:30 a.m., Multi-Purpose Conference Room, 2nd Floor of Health and Human 
Services Building at 1062 St. Rt. 38, Owego, NY 13827. 
 

AGENDA 

Introduction of New Member: Teresea Leary 
 
Introduction of Guest 

-Robert Williams, Tioga County Deputy Director of Emergency Services, TC Deputy 
County Fire Coordinator, TC Coroner 
 

Presentation  
-    Overview of Tioga County Emergency Services, Robert Williams 

Additional Items 

Old Business 

- Meeting Minutes 

- Enforcements 

- BOH Calendar 

New Business 

 -  None 

Informational 

-  Agency Updates – March 2022 

 

Next Meeting Information 

- May 19, 2022 



TIOGA COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH 
 
 

c/o Tioga County Department of Health ~ 1062 State Rt. 38 ~ PO Box 120 ~ Owego, NY 13827 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
March 17, 2022 

 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT :  
J. Picco, DDS, President (By Zoom) 
T. Hills, DVM, Vice President (In Person) 
R. Kapur-Pado, DO (By Zoom) 
W. Standinger III, Legislator (In Person) 
T. Nytch, DVM (In Person) 
W. Simmons (In Person) 
  
STAFF PRESENT:                     
L. McCafferty, Secretary (By Zoom) 
P. DeWind, Esq., County Attorney (By Zoom)(Arrived at 7:38 A.M.) 
A. Reigelman, Secretary to the Public Health Director (In Person) 
 
ABSENT:     
J. Raftis, DO, FACEP 
K. Millar, CRNA  
 
GUEST:                        
Wendy Walsh, District Manager, Tioga County Soil and Water Conservation District (Arrived at 7:30 A.M., 

Departed at 8:07 A.M) 
 
 
Dr. Picco asked Dr. Hills to chair meeting. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 7:34 a.m. by Dr. Hills. 
 
INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS: 

Dr. Hills introduced Ms. Walsh who presented on Tioga County Soil and Water Conservation 
District (SWCD). 

PRESENTATION:  
             Ms. Walsh provided an all-encompassing overview of Tioga County’s SWCD. 

 Formation of SWCD in 1944; listed governing board & district staff members 
 Programs & Services offered (Ag programs vs. non-Ag programs) 

o Ag Program Ex.- Ag Environmental Management Program (AEM): with over 270 
farms enlisted in the program helps farms with heavy use area protection, 
Riparian forest buffering, grazing systems, and more. Assists in planning, design, 
assistance and construction oversight in all areas. 

o Non-Ag Programs Ex.-Hydro-seeding, Stream Program, permit assistance, 
equipment rental, flood control projects, etc.. 

 Various funding sources comes from private landowners, local municipalities, 
federal/state grants 

 Upper Susquehanna Coalition is fully administered out of Tioga County SWCD. Offers 
wetland restoration, buffer work, water quality improvement, stream corridor rehabilitation 
and more. 

 SWCD Participates in other County Committees: Ag & Farmland Protection Board, Ag 
Resource Group, Hazard Mitigation Service Committee, etc. 

             Ms. Walsh ended with questions from the Board: 
 Dr. Kapur inquired what kind of budget SWCD works with. 

o Ms. Walsh explained that they have County appropriation of funds, grant funding, 
and funding that comes from the state, encompassing about $700,000-$800,000; 
and a greater sum with the Coalition. 



TIOGA COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH 
 
 

c/o Tioga County Department of Health ~ 1062 State Rt. 38 ~ PO Box 120 ~ Owego, NY 13827 
 

 Dr. Nytch inquired about Riparian repairs and if private landowners have the ability to 
choose the kind of trees/foliage that will be planted. 

o Ms. Walsh stated that SWCD provides options of foliage they can plant and 
landowners have input in what is chosen. Ultimately, the goal is to have foliage 
that provides the best coverage. 

o Mr. Simmons commented that he had worked with SWCD with a Riparian Buffer 
project for his land. In which he stated is going very well. 

 Question was asked if SWCD has enforcement ability, if landowners do not comply by 
regulated water source locations. 

o Ms. Walsh replied that they are not a regulatory agency; they can educate and 
provide options, but can not enforce. Often times they are a go between for New 
York State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEH) and 
landowners. 

 Ms. McCafferty commented that Ms. Walsh provided a great overview especially in 
discussing point source and non-point source contamination. Stated that the 
Environmental Health Program works closely with SWCD. 

 Dr. Hills thanked Ms. Walsh for her presentation; thereafter the entire Board stated their 
appreciation. 

 
ADDITIONAL ITEMS: 

N/A 
OLD BUSINESS: 

 Meeting Minutes: Motion to approve prior minutes made by Dr. Nytch; seconded by Dr. Kapur-
Pado; all were in favor, motion approved. 

 Enforcements:  
o Dr. Nytch inquired why the Arby’s stipulation was so costly. Ms. McCafferty replied that  

the stipulation increases if the establishment does not correct a violation that previously 
occurred. Dr. Nytch requested that the number of violations (within one year) also be 
included on the enforcement log. Ms. McCafferty stated that would be accommodated. 

o Ms. McCafferty explained the water-related stipulation; which was a failure to report a 
monthly water test. 

 Short discussion of types of water test panels for supplies, with focus on lead in 
water supplies. Ms. McCafferty will provide example of water sampling 
schedules. 

 Board Vacancy Update: Ms. McCafferty stated that Mr. Simmons, the Board of Health’s new 
member was in attendance. Dr. Hills introduced everyone on the Board. 

o Mr. Simmons gave an overview of his background: 
 Grew up on dairy farm in Berkshire, and continued the dairy farm for a time, then 

went to beef cattle. (currently retired from); 
 Attended college for forestry; 
 Went into sales for dairy nutrition; 

 Worked in Precision Management (with Nutritional Management) 
 4h Leader; 
 Currently works closely with Berkshire Fire District and Emergency Services; 
 Feels big responsibility to public service.  

o Ms. McCafferty requested County Attorney DeWind explain why only one candidate. 
 A draft resolution recommending both candidates was not accepted, as there 

was only one current vacancy. County Attorney DeWind explained that the 
existing vacancy was filled by Mr. Simmons. Since the Board did not have 
another vacant seat (and the next vacant seat was not yet established) a second 
member could not be included. 

 Dr. Picco commented that he received an email from Ms. Haray-Butcher stating 
her resignation from the Board of Health. 



TIOGA COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH 
 
 

c/o Tioga County Department of Health ~ 1062 State Rt. 38 ~ PO Box 120 ~ Owego, NY 13827 
 

 Dr. Kapur-Pado welcomed Mr. Simmons, and asked if a letter was sent to the 
second candidate (referred to in the February 17th meeting) Teresea Leary. 

 Ms. McCafferty stated that, to her knowledge, unknown if any 
correspondence went to any candidates. Then asked the Board what 
letters they would like to be distributed, and to whom. 

 Dr. Nytch asked why both candidates could not be brought on, as he thought the 
February 17th meeting had determined that they would expand to 10 members. 

 Response: Did not motion to expand to 10 members. 
 County Attorney DeWind stated that the Board should reach out to the next 

candidate and ask if they would like to serve, then would need to be approved at 
the next Legislative meeting. 

 Dr. Picco asked County Attorney DeWind if the Board should motion to 
approve Ms. Haray-Butcher’s resignation. 

o County Attorney DeWind replied that would not be necessary, it 
is understood that the resignation is accepted. 

 County Attorney DeWind noted that the Board could make a motion for next 
candidate. 

 Legislator Standinger made motion to advance next candidate to 
Legislators; Mr. Simmons seconded. 

 Dr. Hills asked if there was any discussion on the matter. 
 Dr. Kapur-Pado inquired if the Board needed to call and ask Ms. Leary if 

she would still like to serve on the Board before sending to Legislators 
(as she has not been contacted in over four months). She asked if that 
was how Mr. Simmons’s appointment took place. 

o Ms. McCafferty commented that she called Mr. Simmons to ask 
of his interest before resolution was put through. 

 County Attorney DeWind stated that a resolution could be put forward 
contingent on Ms. Leary’s acceptance. 

 Ms. McCafferty stated that she was frustrated about the lack of 
professional courtesy with keeping all candidates informed, and asked if 
anything was sent by the Committee to the candidates. 

o Dr. Kapur-Pado replied that the Committee did not send any 
correspondence to any candidates. 

 Dr. Picco stated that Ms. Leary should be called to see if still interested; 
then after response will send letters to all candidates on outcome. 

o Legislator Standinger stated the earliest Ms. Leary would be 
approved would be at the April 12th Legislative meeting. 

o Ms. McCafferty stated that she will reach out to Ms. Leary to 
inquire of interest, then will submit to Legislature. The Secretary 
will send letters to all candidates on behalf of the Board. 

 Dr. Hills asked if all were in favor to move forward to Legislature to fill Ms. Haray-
Butcher’s position with Ms. Teresea Leary; all members were in favor; motioned 
carried. 

 
NEW BUSINESS: 

 N/A 
 

INFORMATIONAL: 
 Ms. McCafferty stated that the Agency Report and Cannabis Conversation handouts were sent to 

the Board (electronically). 
o She let Board members who were present via Zoom know that they would be sent Health 

Educational promotional “rocks” encouraging vaccination, as they were distributed to 
those who attended in-person. 



TIOGA COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH 
 
 

c/o Tioga County Department of Health ~ 1062 State Rt. 38 ~ PO Box 120 ~ Owego, NY 13827 
 

 “Rocks” are promotion for vaccines in general; especially promotion of children to 
get vaccinated. Preventable childhood disease. 

o COVID is still around, continuing surveillance. 
o Healthy Neighborhoods- Public Health did not receive grant funding; frustrating because 

originally told that it would only be to first-year awards, now counties that have never 
received grant are being rewarded. 

o Offered to reach out to Bob Williams, Deputy Director of Emergency Services, to present 
on topic of Tioga County Fire and Emergency Services. 

 
Dr. Kapur-Pado welcomed Ms. McCafferty back to attending in person. 
 
County Attorney DeWind let the Board know that last night the Governor  extended order 11 until April 15, 

2022 for public meetings to continue to hold meetings virtually. Since the next Board of Health meeting is 
April 21st, the Board will plan to meet fully in person. 
 
Ms. McCafferty reminded the Board to complete the Tioga County Annual Policy Review and Financial 
Disclosure Statements. Reminder email with information will be sent to Board after meeting. 
 
 
Dr. Hills concluded meeting at 8:41 A.M. and thanked everyone for attending. 
 
Minutes respectfully submitted by Ms. McCafferty.  
 
 
__________________________________  ____________________________________ 
     Joseph Picco, DDS, President     Lisa C. McCafferty, R.S., MPH; Secretary 
 
 

Minutes approved April 21, 2022 



April 2022 Enforcements

Business Type of
Violation

Fine Paid/Date Year to
Date

Cliff Bays
Southern Tier Microd Club
96 Catatonk Hill Rd..
Candor, NY

Water $200.00
3/14/2022

First

































pg. 18 of 24















New York State continues 
to stay ahead of federal 
regulators by prioritizing 
and regulating emerging 
contaminants in drinking 
water. 

Implementing NYS 
Drinking Water 
Standards for PFOA, 
PFOS, and 1,4-Dioxane 

In the Field of Environmental HealthIn the Field of Environmental Health

Suffolk County Prepared 
for 1,4-Dioxane Regulation 
and Treatment

Get Ready for the New York State Fair
Learn more about the 
work that goes into 
planning for the New 
York State Fair.

Onondaga Health 
Department’s Role 

Perspectives from 
NYS Fair Volunteers

HAVE A STORY IDEA?
ceheduc@health.ny.gov 

ALSO INSIDE

A Message from  
our Center Director

Polystyrene Foam Ban 
(Foam Free NY)

Setting Limits for 
Heavy Metals in 

Spices

Resources

About Us

SPRING 2022
Please click each green 
headline to read the 
full article. 

Chautauqua County: 
Reducing PFAS in 
Mayville in Record Time



Implementing NYS Drinking Water Standards 
for PFOA, PFOS, and 1,4-Dioxane 
In August 2020, NYS adopted new drinking water standards for public water systems 
that set maximum contaminant levels (MCLs) of 10 parts per trillion (10 ppt) each for 
perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) and perfluorooctanesulfonic acid (PFOS), and 1 part per billion 
(1 ppb) for 1,4-dioxane. An MCL is the highest level of a contaminant allowed in drinking 
water delivered by public water systems and is an enforceable regulatory limit. Limits are 
set far below levels that cause health effects. These levels consider available drinking water 
treatment technologies, the ability to accurately measure the contaminant, and the cost 
associated with removing the contaminant to acceptable levels.
Implementing MCLs is a big workload: Public water systems must regularly monitor for 
contaminants and report results to health departments. State and local departments are required 
to update and maintain compliance information in the Safe Drinking Water Information 
System (SDWIS). Health departments must also oversee that water systems notify the public 
of confirmed exceedances, and establish timetables and plans to bring water systems into 
compliance. 
NYS DOH guidance states that all public water systems should report results for any 
unregulated per-and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) if they are detected when monitoring 
for PFOA and PFOS. These detections must also be reported in the water supplier’s annual 
water quality report. This guidance helps evaluate the need for additional MCLs and helps 
identify local issues associated with unregulated contaminants. 
Contributed by Kristine Wheeler, NYS DOH Bureau of Water Supply Protection

Suffolk County Prepared for 1,4-Dioxane Regulation and 
Treatment
Treating drinking water for 1,4-dioxane involves complicated technology called advanced 
oxidation process (AOP) that uses hydrogen peroxide in combination with ultraviolet (UV) light 
reactors.

The Suffolk County Department of Health Services (SCDHS) and the Suffolk County Water 
Authority (SCWA) were evaluating options to address 1,4-dioxane in public water systems, 
even before New York promulgated its MCL. SCDHS enacted a three-pronged approach 

HOMEHOME

mailto:bpwsp%40health.ny.gov?subject=


focused on monitoring of source water wells and local sources, providing support for piloting 
new treatment technologies, and public education and outreach.

1,4-Dioxane Contamination on Long Island 
About 70 percent of Long Island’s public water supply wells are impacted with 1,4-dioxane, 
according to earlier data collected through EPA’s Unregulated Contaminant Monitoring Rule 
sampling. In Suffolk County, about 28 percent of approximately 500 public water supply well 
sites detected 1,4-dioxane levels, and about 40 percent of 165 public water supply distribution 
system sites countywide also had 1,4-dioxane detections prior to the new MCL. Fortunately, 
the majority of these results were below the MCL of 1 part per billion.
“SCWA had the resources to be out in front of the issue,” explained Joshua Mednick, Senior 
Public Health Engineer Supervisor of Bureau of Drinking Water at SCDHS. “Their staff 
worked with NYS DOH and SCDHS to determine the best treatment technologies.” 

AOP Treatment and Early Efforts
Treating drinking water for 1,4-dioxane is expensive. It involves complicated technology 
called advanced oxidation process (AOP) that uses hydrogen peroxide in combination with 
ultraviolet (UV) light reactors. UV AOP reactors break up the chemical bonds of organic 
chemicals before removing the byproducts with the same type of granulated activated carbon 
filtration used to remove PFAS from drinking water. 
SCWA piloted its first small AOP unit in 2011 at its Commercial Boulevard pump station. 
It effectively removed 1,4-dioxane as well as other volatile organic compounds. SCWA staff 
tested its mini-AOP reactor at 29 drinking water wells all with similar success. SCWA’s first 
full-scale AOP reactor went online on March 1, 2018 at the Commercial Boulevard pump 
station. It achieves up to 99 percent removal of 1,4-dioxane. 

What’s Next?
The projects underway in Suffolk County require construction to house AOP reactors, 
purchasing the reactors and chemicals, as well as the installation and drilling of new water 
supply and monitoring wells. Seven locations require building additions to water treatment 
plants. Every well that will be receiving AOP treatment also must have a water quality 
characterization to identify compounds that may be competing for the treatment. SCWA has 
already completed characterization of over 36 wells. 
With all these upgrades underway, SCWA water systems have remained in compliance with 
drinking water standards through a combination of taking impacted wells out of service and 
blending water to keep levels below standards. 
 “There’ll always be the next contaminant of concern,” Joshua advises. “We continue to 
remain proactive by requiring our larger districts to sample for other emerging contaminants 
to stay ahead of the next round of regulations. Even non-community water suppliers are 
helping us identify contaminants that can be regulated in the future by identifying how high 
levels are and where they are detected.” 
Contributed by Joshua Mednick, P.E., Suffolk County Department of Health Services

HOMEHOME



Chautauqua County: Reducing PFAS in Record Time
NYS DOH guidance states that public water systems should report results for all PFAS 
contaminants when monitoring for the two New York State regulated PFAS contaminants: PFOA 
and PFOS. This practice can help health departments identify unregulated PFAS contaminants 
of concern. Testing for unregulated contaminants in the Village of Mayville identified levels of 
unregulated perfluorononanoic acid (PFNA). After levels were confirmed, the County, Village, and 
New York State fast-tracked efforts to reduce PFNA levels within weeks.

Unregulated PFAS Detected in Village Supply Wells
Drinking water in Mayville is supplied by the Village’s three public water supply wells. Investments 
were underway by the Village with about $6.5 million to upgrade its water storage with a new 
500,000-gallon tank, fix water mains in low pressure zones, and install a new public water supply 
well to replace an older well under the influence of surface water. The urgency for bringing a new 
well online heightened in December 2020 when PFNA detections were confirmed in the two closely 
adjoining water supply wells, 1 and 2. Test results for the third well showed even higher levels of 
PFNA leaving the Village no flexibility to take any wells out of service to reduce exposure. The 
Chautauqua County Department of Health and Human Services (CCDHHS) immediately issued a Do 
Not Drink Advisory for the Village of Mayville out of an abundance of caution, coordinating with 
NYS DOH, the Mayor, and DEC on plans for further sampling and bottled water distribution. 
“It could have taken months to bring the new water supply online had everyone not coordinated 
so quickly,” said William Boria, former Director of Environmental Health Services at Chautauqua 
County Department of Health and Human Services. “Village engineers brought a temporary pump, 
chlorine treatment, and a connection to electric online in just three days following the Do Not Drink 
Advisory. Water was restored and the Do Not Drink order was lifted by December 24th.” 

Finding the Source 
The NYS Department of Environmental Conservation (DEC) and health departments launched an 
investigation into the source of PFNA, to rule out that private wells were impacted. A former field 
used for firefighting foam training/exercises was identified as a potential source of contamination.  

Having only one good well in service was not going to meet peak summer water demand. The 
Village received emergency funding and installed six granular activated carbon (GAC) treatment 
units. The treatment system was operational by July 20, 2021. Both the new well and the treated 
well continue operating concurrently to meet demand.

Contributed by William Boria, recently retired, and Casey Miller; Chautauqua County Department of Health 
and Human Services

HOMEHOME

Photo left: Six granulated activated carbon treatment units. Photo right: Gary Ginsberg, Adam Helman and Daniel 
Lang, NYSDOH; Shawn Ecklund and Samuel Ambrose Village of Mayville, and Casey Miller, Chautauqua County 
Department of Health and Human Services.



Get Ready for the New York State Fair
A lot of preparation accompanies 
the New York State Fair which is 
the largest mass gathering occurring 
in the state annually. Ensuring the 
safety of food from vendors is a joint 
effort between the NYS DOH and the 
NYS Department of Agriculture and 
Markets (A&M), per a Memorandum 
of Understanding. This MOU is only 
one of the many community sanitation 
and public safety aspects monitored 
by the NYS DOH, county and state 
agencies. For the county’s role, see 
Onondaga County’s Role at the Fair.  
Here’s a look behind the scenes at what 
goes into getting ready for the State 
Fair.

This year, the New York State Fair will run 13 days from August 24th – September 5th.

Gearing Up
The following preparations begin each April by Central NY Regional Office (CNYRO) staff:
• Enforcement of the prior year’s violations and review vendor corrective action plans
• Application review and permitting
• Soliciting NYS DOH volunteer inspection staff
• Organizing food operation lists and maps for staff assignments
• Providing staff training, consultation, and pre-operational inspections of Temporary Food 

Service Establishments 
• Meeting with Fair Administration. 

NYS DOH volunteers assist with temporary food service establishment inspections, and 
training A&M volunteer inspectors. Volunteers are asked to arrive a day early and work at 
the Fair for four consecutive days. Last year, staff volunteered from NYS DOH’s Canton, 
Watertown, Western Regional Office and Central New York Regional Office. 
Most high-risk food operations (serving menu items that could contribute to foodborne 
illness) are inspected first, with the goal to have every operation inspected by the fourth 
day of the Fair. Pre-operational inspections are conducted before permits are issued for new 
operations and those requiring corrective action plans from the previous year. Continued 
inspection activities focus on operations where critical violations were recorded, followed 
by second inspections of high-risk and some low-risk operations. Routine monitoring and 
complaint follow-up activities are also performed. 
Contributed by Erin Ingles and John Strepelis, NYS DOH Central New York Regional Office

HOMEHOME



Onondaga County’s Role at the State Fair
The Onondaga County Health Department staff:
• Permit and inspect permanent food service establishments located on the fairgrounds, 

which are inspected at least five times during the Fair. 
• Review the water system, check for proper backflow prevention devices, monitor chlorine 

levels, and collect bacteriological surveillance samples before the Fair opens. 
• Monitor mosquito surveillance sites near the fairgrounds throughout the season. 

Mosquitoes from these traps are routinely sent to Wadsworth Laboratory and tested for 
mosquito-borne viruses. Just before the Fair opens, staff apply larvicide to several breeding 
sites around the fairground. 

• Respond, along with NYSDOH, to any health-related incident, such as a foodborne 
outbreak, the finding of mosquito virus in a trap near the property, an animal bite 
investigation, or public drinking water issue. 

Contributed by Lisa Letteney, Onondaga County Health Department

Perspectives from NYS Fair Volunteers
NYS DOH volunteer inspectors interact with vendors, other health departments, A&M 
staff, and the attendees. Overtime is available for those that are eligible. Training is 
provided. If interested, watch for the annual request and instructions for volunteers in April.

Elizabeth Wilson NYS DOH Western Regional Office
When I saw there was a request for volunteers for the New York State Fair, I jumped 
on it. I used to work in the Central Region and volunteered for two years doing food 
inspections. When I moved to the Western Region I continued because it was so much fun. 
I volunteered from 2017 to 2019, again in 2021, and may volunteer again if they request 
help. The Fair is a good chance to work with colleagues from different departments and 

HOMEHOME

Left to right: Jahed Ahmed and Elizabeth Wilson 
enjoying the fair after work.



other areas of the state. It’s interesting because most of the work is done outside and I am 
contributing to health and safety during the largest mass gathering in NY. Growing up, my 
family attended every year, so it’s nice to give back by working to keep it safe for today’s 
patrons. 
I was able to stay after my workday was over and watch the shows, check out the butter 
sculpture, and see the sand sculpture (which last year was a tribute to frontline workers). 
You do need to bring your iPad to conduct the inspections, but not much else besides 
your thermometer. With any inspection, you never know what you’ll encounter, so there 
is variety within the inspection which makes it interesting, and I liked being in a different 
work environment.

Jahed Ahmed A&M Food Inspector 
I conducted sanitary and food inspections at food service vendors at the New York State 
Fair for the Health Department in 2021. As an A&M food safety inspector, we routinely 
inspect and investigate grocery retailers that have some food service. Yet, many aspects 
of health regulations are very similar to A&M regulations, so shifting gears was easy. 
Additionally, Health Department colleagues were very cordial and resourceful, making the 
transition smooth. When needed, they also accompanied us to the state grounds during a 
complicated inspection/investigation. 
Watching an historic state event unfold before our eyes, while being of some help to the 
public, was rewarding and gratifying. During off hours in the evening, I enjoyed taking 
rides, tasting various foods/drinks, and watching children having fun on the grounds. I’d 
love to volunteer again.
Working at the Fair involves quite a bit of walking, and you will have to keep hydrated. 
Inspectors are used to working outdoors in all weather and therefore the State Fair offers 
more fun and satisfaction than obstacles. My positive experience is a testament to that. I 
strongly urge my fellow A&M employees to take the opportunity to volunteer. 

Polystyrene Foam Ban (Foam Free NY)
Single use, disposable polystyrene foam containers 
have long been used by food service establishments in 
packaging to-go food because they are well insulated. The 
environmental impact of polystyrene, however, has been 
an ongoing concern as it’s not readily biodegradable and 
is a top contributor to environmental litter. Most recycling 
centers don’t accept it because it’s difficult to recycle and 
low in value. The NYS Department of Environmental 
Conservation (DEC) enacted a ban on polystyrene foam 
containers effective January 1, 2022. It encompasses all 
food service providers engaged in selling or distributing 
prepared food or beverages for on-premises or off-premises 

HOMEHOME

https://www.dec.ny.gov/chemical/120762.html


consumption. This includes (but is not limited to) grocery stores, food trucks, hotels, coffee 
shops, and sporting venues. Wholesale and retail stores are also banned from selling or 
distributing polystyrene items. Polystyrene loose fill packaging or packing peanuts are also 
banned. Food service providers may still use containers that do not contain polystyrene 
foam, such as aluminum, rigid plastic, paper, glass, biobased, and compostable materials.
During inspection, health department staff do not need to assess compliance with the ban, 
but may provide education should they notice a violation.

Exceptions and Waivers
Polystyrene foam may still be used for prepackaged food filled and sealed before arriving 
at a food service provider. It may also be used in containers of raw foods intended to be 
prepared off-premises. A food service provider may apply for a hardship waiver if they can 
demonstrate that it creates a financial hardship to comply. Local laws are preempted by 
state law, unless certain conditions are met and a declaration has been filed with DEC. 
Any facility operated by a not-for-profit corporation, federal, state or local government 
that provides food/meals to food-insecure individuals may apply for a renewable 12-month 
financial hardship waiver. Additionally, a covered food service provider with an annual 
gross income under $500,000 (per location) with less than 10 non-franchise locations in NY 
may also apply for the waiver.

Contributed by Darby Greco, NYS DOH Bureau of Community Environmental Health and Food 
Protection

Setting Limits for Heavy Metals in Spices

As part of an initiative announced in the 2018 State of the State address, NYS DOH’s 
Bureau of Toxic Substance Assessment (BTSA) collaborated with the New York State 
Department of Agriculture and Markets (A&M) to develop actionable limits for heavy 
metals found in spices. At the request of A&M, Andrea Candara and Lydia Marquez-Bravo 
of BTSA derived health-based guidance values for arsenic, cadmium, chromium, and lead 
in spices. These values represent the metal concentrations in spices that are protective 
against non-cancer and cancer health effects, based on toxicity data for each metal and 
available data on spice consumption rates. A&M used the health-based guidance values and 
marketplace spice sampling data to develop the actionable limits. For more information see 
Technical Support Document for Derivation of Health-Based Guidance Values for Metals 
in Spices.

Contributed by Tom Johnson, NYS DOH Bureau of Toxic Substance Assessment 

HOMEHOME

mailto:bcehfp%40health.ny.gov?subject=
mailto:bcehfp%40health.ny.gov?subject=
https://www.health.ny.gov/environmental/chemicals/docs/health_based_guidance_for_metals_in_spices_technical_support_document_final.pdf
https://www.health.ny.gov/environmental/chemicals/docs/health_based_guidance_for_metals_in_spices_technical_support_document_final.pdf
mailto:btsa%40health.ny.gov%20?subject=


Health Department Team Efforts on Emerging Contaminants in Drinking Water 

While chemicals like poly- and perfluorinated alkyl substances (better known as PFAS) 
are considered “emerging,” they have been with us for decades. Manufacturing, consumer 
products, food packaging, and firefighting foam may all contain PFAS, and likely have for 
quite some time. So, “emerging” doesn’t mean “new,” but more like “coming to light.” 

Health departments have taken great strides towards shining a brighter light on these 
chemicals, requiring water suppliers to test for them. In 2020, we passed enforceable 
drinking water standards or maximum contaminant levels (MCLs) to address three emerging 
contaminants of greatest concern, PFOA, PFOS and 1,4-dioxane. 

This issue highlights the partnership with state and local health departments, the NYS 
Department of Environmental Conservation and local officials to make these drinking water 
advances a reality. Actions range from rapid response, to long-term planning to reduce 
contaminant levels, to working with the Drinking Water Quality Council and stakeholder 
groups to get the input needed for future regulations. These efforts show once again that it’s 
after the regulation gets passed that the real work begins. 

These efforts are also why New York’s drinking water is among the most protected of any 
state, as health department staff effectively oversee water system compliance, contaminant 
monitoring, and public health notification. Health departments attend town meetings and 
answer calls. If private wells are of concern, staff also have gone door to door to collect water 
samples, provide consultation, and direct people to any available resources. 

This spotlight on drinking water is just one example of the work we do to protect New 
Yorkers. We continue to prove time and again that through health department teamwork 
and strong sense of purpose, we can meet today’s challenges and lead the nation as we go. 

Gary Ginsberg, Director 
Center for Environmental Health

HOMEHOME

Resources in this Issue 
PFAS and Health
Environmental Public Health Tracking
Food Safety
Polystyrene Foam Ban
Technical Support Document for Derivation of Health-
Based Guidance Values for Metals in Spices

Seasonal Resources 
Pests, Pesticides and Repellents
Fish Advisories
Healthy Gardening

A Message from our Center Director

Issued by the NYS DOH Center for  
Environmental Health

Empire State Plaza - Corning Tower, 
Room 1642

Albany, New York 12237
(518) 402-7530, FAX (518) 402-7539

ceheduc@health.ny.gov
Back issues are posted on the Health 

Commerce System for local health 
departments and on CEHWEB for Regional 

and District Offices

Special thanks to our contributors!

In the Field of Environmental HealthIn the Field of Environmental Health

http://www.health.ny.gov/chemicalsandhealth
http://www.health.ny.gov/ephtracker
http://www.health.ny.gov/foodsafety 
https://www.dec.ny.gov/chemical/120762.html
https://www.health.ny.gov/environmental/chemicals/docs/health_based_guidance_for_metals_in_spices_technical_support_document_final.pdf
https://www.health.ny.gov/environmental/chemicals/docs/health_based_guidance_for_metals_in_spices_technical_support_document_final.pdf
http://www.health.ny.gov/environmental/pests/pesticid
http://www.health.ny.gov/fish
http://www.health.ny.gov/healthygardening
https://commerce.health.state.ny.us/hcs/index.html
https://commerce.health.state.ny.us/hcs/index.html
https://nysemail.sharepoint.com/sites/HealthIntranet/cehweb/Pages/In-the-Field-of-Environmental-Health.aspx

	Insert from: "Spring2022.pdf"
	Onondaga County’s Role at the State Fair 


